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COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
WOOD COQUNTY, OEIO
Mark Rubick ' } Case No. 04: CV 650
and )
Jamey Koralewski } Judge Resve Kelsey
} .
Plaintifh, } FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT, JURY
' )} DEMAND ENDORSED HEREON
N )
. ) Jeffrey 8. Creamer (0012539)
America Coming Together ) Douvglas G. Haynam (0019773)
zad ' } SHUMAETGR, LOOP & KENDRICK 11P
Association of Compmumity Organizations firx ) North Courfhouse Squarns
Reform Now (“ACORN™) } 1000 Yarleon Stees
and } Toledo, Ohio 43624.
NAACP National Voter Fond ) Telephone:  (415) 241-5000
and : )} Faw: {4195 241-6854
Ohio AFL~CI0, an Chio wnincorporated ) B-Mail Jeremmer({@slk-law.com
association ) E-Mazil dhaynam@sik-law.com
} Artorneys for Plointiffa
Defendants. }
)
L L ]
Introdnction
1. Plaintiffs are residents of Wood County, Ohio whe have complied with state law

znd were properly regisiered to vote and voted in the November 2, 2004, general clection.
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2. Defendants’ are entities orgenized wnder various laws and doing business in Ohio.
All Deferdants are “parmers” and/or participants in America Votes. America Votes is set up as
a non-yrodt corporation organized wnder §527 of the Internal Revenue Code, o

3. Defendants have engaged in massive voler registration drives throughout the
Unitad Stares and the State of Chio.

4. As part of their efforts, and az described in detail below, these organizations are

' engaged in 2 massive frandulent voter registration schame.

5. Every fraudulent registration js a potential iflegal vote that ditntes the vote of
1egitin§ma voters, such s Plaintiffs, who have complied with all lawiful registration requirements
and who are in fuct lawfully eligble to vote.

Jurisdiction/Venue

6. This Court bas subject matter jusisdiction pursuant 10 Article IV, Section 4(b),
Ohie Constitution and §2923.34(B) Ohic Revised Code. ‘

7. This Const has personsl jurisdiction over the Defendans becanse they are either
residents of Okio or have transacted businese in Ohio out of which the claims asseftcd herein
have arose. Venuz is proper in Wood County becanse Pluintiffs reside in Wood County and this
is an action deseribed in Ohio Civil Rule 4.3, as provided in Ohio Civil Rule 3(BX7), a5 10 at
Icast ane of the Defendants as required under Ohio Civil Rule 3(E) for venue over all parties and
claims.

Parties

8. Plaintiff Mark Rubick is a resident of and a registorsd voter in Wood Connty,

Ohio, who voted on November 2, 2004 and who plans to vots in future clections.

FeeiFree Entorprise CoaltonAmeneod Eomplam, dos 2
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9. Plaintiff Jamey Komlewski is 2 resident of and a registered voter in Weod
Coumty, Ohio, who voted on Novermber 2, 2004 and who plans to vote in fature elections.

10.  Defendapt America Coming Together (“ACT") i, upon information snd belief, 2
non-profit corporation and a nationwide political emterprise organtzed under §527 of the Internal
Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. §527 with its principal place of business in Washington, D.C.

“11. ACT hay engaged in frandulent voter registration activity throughout Ohio in get-
out-the-vote activities related 1o the November 2004 general election and will, upon informarion
and belief, continue to engage in such fraudulent voter registration activities in connection with

futare elections wnless and until the relief sought by Plaintiffs herein is praved.

< 12. ~Defendant Associstion of Community Organizations for Reform Now [
("ACORN"} ig/ upon information énd belief, & nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of
Arkansas with its principal place of business in Washington, D.C. ACORN is rogistersd as a
pon-profit w@%oﬁ' Wwith'the State of Chio.

13. i" ACORN hals engaged in fraudulent voter registration activity throughont Ohio

-~ :
and the Ut It conmection with the November 2004 general election and will, upon

e
W&ﬁ comtinue to engage in such fandulent voter registration activities in

commection with future elections unless aud wntil the rolief sought by Flaintiffs herein is granted.

B L
N2

4 Defendant Obie AFL-CIO is an unincorporsted association, the individual
members of which are mostly (if not exclusively) cltizens and residents of the State of Ohio,
which is organized under the laws of Obio with its principal place of business in Columbus,
Chig, _

15, Diefendant Ohio AFL-CIO has engaged in frandulent voter registration aetivity in

Ohio in connection with the November 2004 gemeral election aad will, upon information and

Jeci¥res Bowerprise Costidon\Amendad Compluire dos -3
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bekief comtine 'o engage in such fraudntent voter registration activitics in commcetion with futare
elections unless and mtil the relief sought by Plaintiffs herein is granted,

18, Defendant NAACP National Voter Fimd is & nonprofit corporation orpanized
under the Laws of Washington, D.C. with is principal place of business in Washingion, D.C.
The NA.ACP Voter Fund is registercd as 2 nén—proﬁt corporation with the State of Ohia,

17. Defendamt NAACP Narional Voter Fupd has enzaged n ﬁaudnlent voter
registration activity thmrugimut Obio and the Ugitsd States in camecucm with the November
2004 genepal slection a-nd will, upon information and belief, continue to engage in such
fraudulent voter registration activities in conmection with Fature elections unless and until the
relief songht by Plaintiffs herein is granted.

COUNTX
{VIOLA‘I'I;I}NS OF THE OHIO CORRUPT ACTIVITY ACT)

18. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in paragraphs
1 twough 17 above, _

19. Derezicié'zsm ACORN, ACT, AFL-CIO snd NAACP National Voter Fund are
“persons,” within the meaning of' §2923 31(G) Ohio Revised Code.,

200 Amanca VYates and, the Government of the State of Ohio (hercinafter,
‘Entmpnm"} are “Entarpma:s” as defined in §2923.31{C) Ohio Revised Code because they are
governmeni agencies, other legal entifies or orgavizations and/or associations or proups of
p&?ons asmmeci in fact, a&ﬂwugh a not z lsgal entity.

...... | AN
21, ‘%Bagmnmg m 2003 and continuing into the futwe, D

mgage in the ﬁm.ue, by ami through their agents, . : obtsan, ‘obtain, prepare and file

......

ettt
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Frandulent §oter registeations t&roughbut the Seate of Ohio and the United States by means of
numerous Violations of §2912.31(A)(1), (2) md (3) Ohio Revised Code (Forgery znd Uttering
Forged Documents), §2913.42(A)(1) and (2) Ohio Revised Code (Tampering with Writings and
Records, 'Uﬁezing 'I‘ampgmd Writings of Records) and §2325.03 Ohic Revised Code

(Trafficking in Drugs), all with a common purpose to, among other things, (1) induce the public,

Including persons similarly siteated to Plaintiffs, to make and increase supporting donations to
thelr respective organizations by falsely making it appear that Defendants® voler registration
efforts were being more successful than they actually were, and (2) to injure or threaten to injure
Plaintiffs mad others similarly situsted by depriving hem of their voting rights by dihsting and/or
threatening to dilute those rights, by depriving or threstening fo deprive them of their rights to
pacticipete in ax honest and eifective election process, by impairing and/or threatening 1o fmpair
Plaintiffs’ rights to have govemment officials chosen and other ballot measires appraoved oy
disapproved by means of a fuir and accurate election process, by depriving and fireatening fo
deprive Plaintiffs of their propexty rights by depriving them of their voting rights by impairing
ad diluting awd/or threatening to Impair or dilute those rights and hy incrwsﬁing the costs of
povemmental clection adminisiration thus increasing or threatening to increase Plainiffs’ and
other cjtizens’ taxcs and sssessments and by otherwise injuring end thweatening to imjiurc

Plaintiffs within the meaning of §2923 .30@1{3\:&0 Revised Code,

e S

22. In fixtherance of th&;c};iz? descmibed above, Defendants ACORN, ACT,
[ N———
NAACP National Voter Fund and AFL-CIO committed the Predicete Acts doscribed a1 '

paragraphs 24 through 39 below. All Predicate Acts were committed within the scope of the

common scheme and conspiracy engaged in by all of the Defendants and were expressly andfor (¢

Joe\Freg Enivrpriss ConRtiomhA mended Commiadat.dos ' 5
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implicitly auwthorized by Defendamis. Each Predicate Act is thus the act of cach and every
Defendant, |

23. Frzzudulent voter registration within the State of Ohio and the United States has
reached epidemic proportions over the last several months, Criminal investigations are
underway into thousands of frandulent registration forms tumed it with fake names and/or

forged eignaturss in Lake, Sumumit and Franklin Counties. Numeroue falsified voter registration

&
cards have also beon discovered in Hamilton County, Cuyshoga County and Lucas Comnty. Ina
news broadeast on October26 2004, Fox News Wetw orved that some 120,000 Chioans
4 A NSt ] Fuend L /\_w
S have registered at }cast wice 1o vote, On Sep 22, 2004, the Ohio Burean of Criminal ™

\ hmﬁg_aﬁan confirmed that it was investigating over eight hundred fraudulent voter registration, ’AT/;/
cards submitted in Siammit County. Upon information and belief, thousands of additional, a5 yet Vs

r——

undetected, faudulent registrations have been submitted throughout fhe State of Ohio and the [~

L
i i

Trndted Stam 'I'he Dcfendants, by means of the scheme described below, have masin a major ‘
coptribution to fhis roassive election faud.

24, Beginoing by at lsast early 2003 mmd contimung wutil the 2004 cloction,
Defendants have engaged, by and through their agents, in a common scheme o obrain, prepare
and file frandulent voter registoations throughont the State of Okio and the United States by
means of pemerous violations of Ohlo law s described at paragraphs 25 through 40 below
(bereinafier “Predicate Acts™). Defendants will, upon information and belief, continue o engage
in their scheme in connection with fisvure clections unless and unnlthc relief songht by Piamnﬂis
herein is gramted.

25, In submitting fraudulent voter registration cards, ageniy and representatives of

Defendants have commitled multiple violations of §2913.42(AX1) andfor (2} Ohio Revised Code

JFe\Fre Enterprise Coutitiondamendad Comphintdos &
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by falsifying writings and governmental records by uttering writings end governmental records
knowing such records and documents 10 have been tarmpered with, as provided & division (A)(1)
of §2913.42. The proceeds of said violations, (in the foem of, among other things, additional 3
contributions received by Defendants as 3 result of the false mpression that their schemes
created), the payments made in commection with the violations (in the formn of among other
things “bounties,” paymexts or othar rewands for collacting and/or processing the rogistrations,
mcluding but not Kmited to, llegal drugs, paid to individuals actually engaged in the vislations),
and the amounts claimed by the individuals actually involved in committing the violations on
Defendants’ behalf (in the form of the “bounties” and/or other payments described above), either
individually in somne cazes or 8s a resalt of the combination of Defendants' viclations, excecded
Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00). Said tampering, falsification and uttering of
tampered and falsified docwments was dons by and/or on behalf of Defendants with o puIpnse to
defraud and/or kmowing that said sctivitics were facititting a Send, specificslly, the Defendants’
scheme to prepare, obtahy, and submit false voter registration cards as deseribed at paragraph 21
above,

26, In submitting fraudulent voter registration cards, agents and represerfatives of
Defendants hgve also committed multipie violations of §291331AX1), (2}, and/or (3) Ohio
Revised Code in that they have forged Writings of another without the other person’s authority,
forged writings so that they purported 10 be genuins when they wers actually spurious and forged
writings so that they purported to be the act of another who did not authorize that act andfor in
that they uttered or possessed with a purpose to utter writings tha;t they knew fo have been
forged. The proceeds of said violations, (n e form of among other things, additiomal &
contributions received by Defendanty as a result of the false mopression that their schemes

JrsiFron Enterprise Coalltfon\Acemded Complrint dop 7
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created), the peyments maide Im connectinn with the vialations (in the form of, armong other
things “bounties,” payments or other yewards for collecting and/or pro¢essing the registrations
including but not limited to, illegal drugs, paid to ndividunals a2ctmaly angaged in the violations),
and the amownts claimed by the mdividuals uctually involved in commyitting the vielations op

- Defendanrs’ bebalf (in the form of the *“bounties” described sbove and/or other payments), either

individually in soms cascs or es a result of fhe combination of Defendants’ violations, exceeded
Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00). Al such forgeries by Defendants’ agems and

represepbatives were doue as part of and to advance the sk cribed at paragraph 21 sbove,
B,
}ch&n Fall 2003 and June 20084, ACORN itted approximately 23,000
o

caxds in Frankiin County, Ohio. MTR ranklin County Board of Elections
began uncovering fravdulent voter Tegistration cards filed by ACORN in the wintes of 2003,
Among other things, the Board found registration cards submitted by ACORN for people who
did not exist and that were, in the words of Frankfin Comty Board of Elwﬁm Director,
Matthew Damschyoeder, “blatantty false” The mmmager of Frankiin County Voter Services has
confirmed that the submission of false voter registration forms has resulted in the jssasnce of
voter idemtification cards. Such cards may he nsed to cast faudulent votes in the November
2004 elections. Bach of the frandulent voter registration cards submitted by ACORN in Fraklin
County constines a violation of §2913.42 andfor §2913.31 Ohio Revised Code and, this, a
Predicars Act.

28, Prior to March 18, 2004, NAACP National Voter Fond Stete Assistmat Director,
Thaddeus Fackson, scting om behslf of Defendant NAACP Nabtional Veter Fund, submitted 17

Tegistration cards hearing forged signatires to the Cuyahogr Couaty Board of Blections. Each of

JecdEron Emorpriss Conlitus\Ayrended Complaint dos 8
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"thc. 17 forged registration cards comstitutes a violation of §2913.42 undfor §2913.31 Ohkin

Rcvxscai Code and, thus, a2 Predicate Aot -
1 *\\% Prior % June3, 2004, two agents ACORN fobmitted fraudulent voter

2% )
m;g{nﬁﬁq/&ms to the Franklin County Board of ElectionsFach fraudulent regiswation caré g
constitntes a violation of §2513.42 and/or §2913.31 Chio Revised Code and, thus, a Pro

Act,

), Prior to October 8, 2004, ACORN /Agubmttcd 1 falte voter regisimation cards 1o /%

% /Qicunty Board of Elections, inéﬁ&ing cards identifying people who did not exist.

Each &audzﬁem registration card constifites 2z violation of §2913.42 and/or $2913.31 Ohia
Revised Code and, thig, 2 Predicate Act.

31, Prior to Se;?tcmbcr 23, 2004, the NAACP Nationa} Voter Fund submitted a voter
registration card to the Lake County Board of Elections which purperted to have been prepared
by 2 person who haz been deceasad for more than two decades. The frandulent registration card

eonstinntcs a violation of §2913.42 and/or §2913.31 Obio Revised Code and, thus, a Predicate
Act. |

32. Prior to September 23, 2004, ACT submitted a fandulent Vntc:r registration card
to the Lake County Bomrd of Elections which purported 1o bear the firm, crisp, cursive signature
of an slderly mursing home resident who was only capable of scrawling s shaky “X" when
signing official documents, The Fzudnlent reglstration card constitutes a violation of §2913.42
and/or §2913.31 Chio Revised Code and, thus, a2 Predicate Act,

3. Prior to August20, 2004, Defendant AFL-CIO submitted more. than 50
registration carde to the Swnmit C‘;oimty Board of Elections, a number of which were fraudulent.

At Teast two of ﬁ:ﬂ cards were filed on behalf of voters who were already regigtered. In addition,

f=ciFroc Bparprise CoafifonMmended Compluing doo 9
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wwamy of the signaturcs on the cards were in the same handwriting. Bozrd of Flections Director,
Bryan Williams, stated that the effort to double ragister voters conld be an indication that
someone is trying to see if it is possible 1o cast two votes under one person®s name. Had the
cards not been questioned, the actusl registered voters may have gone te the polls properly, but
someong else could have attempred to use the second Tegistration to obtain an ahssntes ballot and
cast an illegal vote, sccording to Mr, Wiliams. Fach fraundulent registration curd constitutes a
violation of §2913.42 and/or §2913.31 Ohio Revised Code and, thas, a Predicate Act.

34 Also prior to Angust 20, 2004, agents of ACT submitted a registration cwd for a
Niles, Okio resident whe had sot filled it out to the Trumball Comnty Board of Elections. His
address and social security mumber were maccurate and his signatore had been forged. In
addition, ACYT has submitted duplicate registration cards to the Trumbull County Board of
Elections. - Bach fraududent registration card constifutes a violation of §2913.42 and/or §2913.31
Okio Rev:sad Cod:: and, thus, a Predicate Act, (’fﬁ-\\

\ 3s, ?‘nmr o Cewober 8, 2004, agﬂafs and reprcsmm\-eg*’af ACORN }ubnntrcd 19 B
voter ations to the Hamilvon Cownty Board of Elestions forhmmwho could mot be ’ \
located by the sherifi's dapartment after shrdlar handwriting and false addresses rajsed election
workers” saspicions. Upon information and belief, the registration cards were frandulent aud
comtained forged signatures. FBach fraudulens registration card comstivutes a violation of
§29}3.€!g gz_gil"or §2913.31 Ohio Revised Code thus, & Pradicate Act.

a forged signature. On or sbout September 7, 2004, the Pranklin County Police issued 2 folony \”“ ‘

arrest warant for Kevin Bugene Dooley, who was charged with forging the voter Tegistraton

T

JealFroa Enterprive ConlitiontAmended Complainsdos - 10
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card in questor. Mr. Dooley is 2 convicted felon who had been released on pamle in November
of 2003 while still serving a § 1o 25 year septence for Teceiving stolen property, escape and
g and entering, The fraudulent voter registration forged by Mr. Dooley on bebslf of

Eite Act, :

37. Cn or about October 8, 2004, 124 faudulent voter registration forrms which had
been prepared by Defiance, Ohio resident Chad Staton on behatf of Defendant NAACP National
Voter Pund were sent to the Defiance County Board of Blections. The false voter mMon
cards included cards bearing the name of Mary Poppins, Jeffrey Dahmer, Janet Jackson, George
Foreman, Michael Jordan and Dick Trecy, among others. A subseqient investigation by
Defisnce County Election workers confirmed that the forme Prepared by Mr. Staton identified
ron-gxistent persons and contafned forged signatures. Mr. Sfaton was subsequently arrested and

, charged with felony violations of §3559.11 Ohio Revised Code. Fach of the frandulent voter
regiswation forms constinues a vislation of §2913.42 and/or §2913.31 Ohio Revised Code and,
s, a Predicate Act, ‘

3s. Subsequent investigations by the Defiance Sheriff's office, working together with
the Toledo Police, revealed that Staton had provided ‘&i‘a forme to Gemmamna Pitts, whe had
been retmived by the Assistant Ohio Director of Defendant NAACP Natdonal Voter Find,
Thaddeuns J. Jackson, I, to obiain wacr registrations, Ms, Pitts who, over the last two decades
has been convicted of crimes ranging from domestic viclence to Tesisting arrest, admitted that
she gave Staton crack cocaine in peyment for his supplying her with the frandulent voter
registration forms, Pitg® delivery of the crack cocaine to Staton on behalf and for the benafit of

Defendart NAACP National Voter Frnd in exchange for the fraudulent voter registration cards

JseiPres Emaprise Costitor\rrendad Comphintdos . . n
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constintes Trafficking in Drugs i violation of §2925.03 Ohio Revised Code and, thus,
constitutes another Predicate Act for which Defendants are resporsible,

39.  In July 2004, agemts acting on behalf of & member organization of Defendant
AFL-CHO in Stark County, Ohic organized a raffle of a motorcycle in exchange for registering or
Teregistering to vote in viclation of §3599.02 Ohio Revised Cods. Minfwmnaﬁon and belief,

——y
— I
— —

as & result of the reffle organized by or on behalf of AFL-CIO, fraudulent duplicate registrations
were prepared and submitted by agents of AFL-CIO to Boards of Rlection in Stark County ang

other Eastern Ohio couptfes. Bach of the frmdulent voter registration forms constitutes o
vinlation of §2913.42 and/or §2913.31 Chio Revised Code and, thie, o Predjcats Act,

49, Priﬁr to October 28, 2004, wpproximately 100 fraudnlent voter registration cards
were submitted by Defendant NAACP National Votsr Fund to the Lucas County Board of
Elections. Bach faudulent registration card constifutes a violation of §2913.42. Ohio Revised
Code and/or §2913.31 Ohio Revised Code and, thus, a Predicate Act.

41, The Fredicate Acts desaribed above comprise u patiem of commupt activity as that
term is defined in §2923.31(E) Ohio Revised Code i that they have the same or similar
purposes, results, participants and methods of corvmission and are otherwise interrelated and are
ot isolated events. The Predicats Acks cccurred with soms frequency over at least 18 months,
were a regular way of conducing the Defendants’ apd the Enterprises’ businesses and/or
operations and a regular way of Defendants’ conducting or paxticipating in the affairs of the
Enterpriges, end there iy a threat of continued criminal activity in thaf, among other things,
Defendants arc still engaging in Predicate Aets similar to those alleged ot paragraphs 25 through

39 above and, upen informiation and belief, will continne to engage in such Predicate Acts in the
future.

Jsc\Fres Enverprise Coaltion\amended Corplaint.dos : 12

H

+1d XH4 L3rda3sy oH HdED:!S BOOZC 92 o0



ey

: 12/17/2004 18:06 FAL 43¢ 241 31038 SLX TOLEDO Bo15/018

42. By mcans of the pattern of Corrupt Activity described above, Defendants, aud
cach of them, conducted of participated, directly or fndirectly, in the conduct of the Enterprises’
affairs. :

43. By reason and as a dircct, foreseesble and proximate result of Defendants’
conducting and/or participating mn, directly or indirectly, the affairs of the Enterprises through fae
patiern of Corrupt Activity described above, Plaintiffs have been injared and/or are threatencd
with injury in that Defendants’ actions (1) have diluted and/or threaten o dilute Plaingiffs’ voting
rights; (2} have deprived and/or threaten to deprive Plaintiffs of thewr voting :ights. and their
rights to parficipate in an honest and effective clsction process; {3) have irupaired and/or threaten
to impair Plaindffs* .v:ig.’m; to have goverrmmentsi officials chosen and other ballot meamures
approved or disgpproved by mezns of a fair and accurate elestion process; and (4) have immposed
and/or threaten to impose indivect economic jogses (Incloding, but not limited to, increased taxes
and assessments) upon Plainti@fy ay a resolt of the disreption of the tlection process, together
with the attendant gava:mt,, foancial and economic conssquences wWhich Plamnff will suffer
from such disroption. |

COUNT I
(CONSPIRACY TO VICLATE §2923.32(AX3) OEIO REVISED CODE)

a4, Plaintiffs h;-mby incorporate by reference the allegations coptained in parngraphs
[-43 above.

45, In connextion with, and by means of, the pattern of Cornupt Activity described
abovs, the Defendants conspired o violate §2923.32 Ohio Revised Code in that each one of
them, acting with a speciﬁ:: intent to commit or paxticipale in the commission of at least two of

the Predicate Acts described above and 1o cause injury o Pleimiffs and othars similarly sitoated

| understanding to accomplish a
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common uplawful purpdse, did emer into a conspiracy bo violate the Wisious of
§2523.32(A)(3). | |

46. By reason of the Defendants’ conspiracy to violate §2923.32(A)(3) Ohio Revised |
Code, Plaintiffs have been damaged as mors specifically alleged at paragraph 43 above and are
entifled to relief under §2923 34 Ohio Revised Code,

COUNT I
Eragg/Frauduient Civil Consplracy

47.  Plaipfiffs hereby incorparate the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 46

t

shave,

48, Defendants and each of them bave conspired with the otherz to carry out the
frandulent schemes described herein. By mezps of thia malicious comblination, Ii)afen;tanxs have

managed to inflict damages wpon Plaintiffs in a way not competent for one alons.

49, On, numerous occasions as described in paragraphs 24 through 40 sbove, and,
upon information and betief, otherwise om occasions -where the fraud has not yet been detcsted,
Defimdarts provided materisl false information an voter registration forms.

50, This false information was provided by Defendants with knowledge of the falsity

. mﬁw-d

or with reckiess disregard for the truth of the Information contained in voter reglstration forme
Ll S PR +

submitted.

51. These forms containing felse information have been submmtted with intent to
mislead local clection officials and voiers of Ohio, including the Plaintiffa,

52,  Local election officials acting on behalf and ss Tepresentatives of the Plaintiffs,
- justifiably relied on the information submitted on said voter registration forms, particularly in
light of the signatore aud affimation required By state law to be completed wder penalty of
¢riminal smaction.

JoeiFroe Enverprine Conlian\Amanded Crmplaintdos - 14
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53,  As g direct, proximate and foreseeable result of ihe rcliance of their
represcntatives who were acting on their behalf, Plaintiffs have suffered injury as described at
paragraph 43 above. | _

WITEREFORE, Plainciffs, and each of thern, hereby demand judgment as follows:

(1}  Imposing reasonable restrictions vpon the futwe activities of Defendants
inchding, bt 1;mt ttmited to, restrictions that prohibit the Defendants from engaging in the same
Predicate Acts, pattem o;' corrupt activites and Enterprises in which the Defendants were
participating, o conspiring fo participats, in violation of §2923,32 Ohto Revised Code;

2 Granting ipjmctive relief agaimst the Defendants, and sach of them,
prohibiting them Som engaging in further acts in pursuance of their frandulent scheme jncheding,
but not limitsd, addidons! Predicate Acts such as those deseribed above, pursuant to
§2023.34(E);

Gy  Awarding Plaintiffs conssquential dameges;

4) Awa}'ding Platmitfs triple demages pursuant 1o §2923.34{F); 1

(5}  Awardimg atorneys’ fees and costs pursuant (o §2923.34(G) of Ohio*. 2;%
Revised Code and Obdo law; and L

) Adeing such other and further relief as the court shall deen just and

gquitable,
YA
LOOP & KENDRICK, LLP
Attomeys for Plaiptiffs
joe\Fros Emarprise Conlitorhmendad Compiaintdos 15
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1

JURY DEMAND
Plaintiffs hereby demand trial by jury in this actiop.

itted,

a.ynzm
: At forPlamnﬁ's

SHUMAEER, LOO?P & KENDRICK, L1FP

OF S

This is to certify thet a copy of the foregoing First Amended Complamt, Jury
Demand Endorsed Hereon*was served by ordinary United States mail upon Don McTigue, 3886
M. High Strest, Colarnbus, OH 43214, attorney for Defendont America Coming Together; Mika
‘Bowle:r. Blekemors, Mesker & Bowler, 19 N. High Street, Akaon, Ohio 44308 and Steve Dane,
Cooper Walinski, 900 Adams Street, Toledo, OH 43624-1505, atorneys for ACORN; Stowaxt
Taffy, Stewart R. Jaffy & Ascociates, LPA, 306 E. Gay Strest, Columbus, OH 43215-3247,

attorneys for Ohio AFL-CIO, and NAACP National Volar Fund, c/o Vel Scott, 1986 Stokes

Jse\Bree Entcrprivs Coolitipm\Amended Compiaint.doc 16
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Qotober 26, 2004

Douglas G. Haynam, Esq,
Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP
North Courthouse Square

L1000 Jnckson Siroot

Toledo, Ohio 43624

Daer Mr, Haynam:
I, Mark Rubick, 1109 Ssndpiper, Bowling Green, Ohlo 43404 do heroby retain

the lew firm of Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP (*Shymaker, Loop & Hend:
purposc of filing a lawsult In Wood County, Ohlo alleging fraudidont voter peflstration imder the

Ohlo Comrupt Practices Aet along with any other sppropriste clalms forlre

NAACP National Voter Fund, Obic AFL-CIO, ACT Ohio, the Assools gn of Community
Organizations for Reform Now (“ACORN™), and other appropriate parties. '
I undergtand thet Shumdaker, Loop & Kendrici™s foes will determined hy =

number of factors Including i guideline bourly rate for cach profegsion
matiee, My retestion of Shamaker, Loop & Keandrlok 14 made with the un :
Free Enterprise Coalition shall be responsible for payment of amy and all of
Kendrick’s costs and fioes incurred on my behwalf th eonnection with the' Silinglin
this action. My retcatlon is furthee made with the understending thet 4

i working <ot this
stand 'ﬂg that the

Coalitlon has elso agreed that it shall fully and completely mdemmify, ddfnd and hold me
harmless for sny clalms, costs, expenss, judgments, and lega] feos whatsooyvongha might arisze or
be brought againsrmoas x et OT 3Ty pacticlipation in this iawemlt, snd wil] diecute thm portion
of this document ayoemet,
Very traly ¥

I

g
- E E _!

‘Tha Frog Enterprise Coalitlon beroby aggrees o fidlly and oor lotedy mdemnlfy,

defend and hold hammiess the aforceald Mark Rublck for gy claims, costé, s nses.‘judmcms,

arrd fegal fees whatsoever thet t wrise a8 a result of his participation in th
m% 7%
Kz '

AlexVogel, An Aﬁuﬁzod Represontative

i
‘ RO001
#
1

XUd [Jry3sd dH WdS0:5 BO0OZ 82 %70
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COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
WOOD COUNTY, OHIO

Marik Rubick, et gl
Plaintiffy,
-VS~
America Coming Topether, et &l

)
)
)
3
)
J
»
Defendangs. }
)
3
)
3
J
)
)
)
)

Koralewski, hereby give notice of the dismissal of this action® 7/

Case No. 04 CV 650
Judge Kelsey
NGTICE GF DISMISS&L

.fefﬁ'ey 5. Creamer [0012539)
Douglas G. Haynam (0019773)
SHUMAKFER, LOOP & KENDRICE, LLP

North Courthonse Square
1000 Jackson Street
Toledo, Ohio 43624

Telephone:  (419) 241-9000
Fax: {419) 241.68%4

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

i

ZER. “LooP & KENDRICK, LLP

Attomeys for Plaintiffy

Xdd LICHASHT doH

HdE80 8 8002 92 320
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A CE
This is fo certify that a copy of the foregoing Notlce of Dismiseal Witheat
Prejndiu; was served by ordinary United States mail upon Donald J. McTigue, 3886 N, High

Street, Columbus, OH 43214, attorney far Defendant America Coming Togethes: Steve

Bachman, 51420 Hunter's Crossing Court, Grange, Indiana 46530-8856 and Stephen M. Dane,
Relman & Associates PLLC, 312 Louisiana Aveoue, Perrysborg, Ohis 43551, attemeys for
ACORN; Stewnrt Jaffy, Stewart R. Jaffy & Associates, LPA, 306 E. Gay Street, Columbus, OH
43215-3247, attorneys for Ohio AFL-CIO, and CHff Amebeck, Amebeck Law Office, 1351
&? Avenue, 18t floor, Columbus, Ohio 43212, attorney for NAACP National Voter Fund this

day of October, 2005,

S p——

Altomeys for Plaintifls

Xtd4 LIACHISHT dH HdS0D 5 8002 82 1200
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Nov 21 2005

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA ciern Ue Dot
MLAQMI DIVISION 5.0, OF FUA, - MiAMI

Case No. 04-61636 MARTINEZ / BANDSTRA

CHARLES ROUSSEAU, RICHARD INIGUEZ,
ROBERTO PERALTA, RICHARD EVANS,
JUDE DANIEL, DANIELLE GANTT,
ALBERTHA McCALL, KEITH JACKSON,
TANGUELA LEE, DARREL DENNIS,
FELICIA OLIVER and TIM WILSON,

Plaintiffs,
v.

ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY
ORGANIZATIONS FOR REFORM NOW,
INC,, d/b/a ACORN, and FRANK HOUSTON,

Defendants.

JOINT STIPULATION OF VOLUNTARY DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE

Plaintiffs, Keith Jackson and Albertha McCall, and Defendants, Association of
Community Organizations for Reform Now, Inc. (“ACORN™) and Frank Houston (the
“Parties”), by and through their undersigned attorneys, pursuant to Rule 41(a)(1) of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure, hereby file this Joint Stipulation of Voluntary Dismissal With
Prejudice. The Parties stipulate that ACORN would prevail on its Motion for Summary
Judgment and that neither ACORN nor Mr. Houston made fraudulent misrepresentations to
Plaintiffs. Based on this stipulation, the Parties agree that all claims in this case and all claims
that Plaintiffs could have brought against ACORN and Mr. Houston in this case will be
dismissed with prejudice. No Party will seek atiorneys’ fees or costs from another Party. This
stipulation provides for the dismissal with prejudice of the only two Plaintiffs remaining in this

action, and the Parties request the Court enter an order dismissing this case in its entirety.

10of3
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Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Stuart A, Rosenfeldt, Bsa,

Stuart A. Rosenfeldt, Esq.
Florida Bar No. 316113
Melissa Lewis, Esq.
Flortda Bar No. 301670
Rothstein Rosenfeldt Adler
300 Las Olas Place

300 SE 2™ Street, Suite 860
Fort Lauderdale, FI. 33301
Telephone: (954) 522-3456
Facsimile: (954) 527-8663
srosenfeldt@rrdnlaw.com
Counsel for Plaintiffs

{8/ Brian H. Koch, Esaq.

Faith E. Gay

Florida Bar No. 129593

Brian H. Koch

Florida Bar No. 637335

White & Case LILP

Wachovia Financial Center, Suite 4000
200 South Biscayne Blvd.

Miami, F1 33131

Telephone: (305) 371-2700

Facsimile: (305) 358-5744
bkoch{@whitecase.com

Counsel for ACORN and Frank Houston
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
MIAMI DIVISION
Case No. 04-61636 MARTINEZ / BANDSTRA
CHARLES ROUSSEAU, et al,,
Plaintiffs,
V.

ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY

ORGANIZATIONS FOR REFORM NOW,

INC., d/b/a ACORN, and FRANK HOUSTON,
Defendants.

/
FINAL ORDER OF DISMISSAL

THIS CAUSE having come before the court on the Joint Stipulation for Dismissal
submitted by Plaintiffs Keith Jackson and Albertha McCall, and Defendants, Associaﬁén of
Community Organizations for Reform Now, Inc. and Frank Houston, and due canse appearing
therefor, it is hereby:

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the above cause be and the same is hereby
DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE.

ORDERED that the Clerk shall close all files relating to this matter.

DONE and ORDERED in Chambers at Miami, Florida this __ day of , 2005,

JOSE E. MARTINEZ

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
Conformed copies to:
Magistrate Judge Bandstra
All Counsel of Record
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FILED @&/\ oC

DEC 0§ 2005

CLRRENCE ‘AM.}L)U,\:
GCLERA W & ST N
5.0, 0F FLA ATERSY

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHIERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
MIAMI DIVISION
CASE NO. 04-22764-CIV-KING/O'SULLIVAN
MAC STUART.

Plaintifi,
v,
ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY
ODRGANIZATIONS FOR REFORM NOW,
INC., d'ba ACORN, an Arkansus corporation.

Defendant.

FINAL ORDER OF DISMISSAL WITH .PREJUD!CE OF COUNTS
FPAND Il OF THE AMENDED COMPLAINT AND JUDGMENT IN
FAVOR OF ACORN ON COUNTERCLAIMS L AND I FOR DEFEMATION

THIS MATTER is before the Court upon the Parties™ Joint Stipulation for Voluntary
Dismissal of Counts | and Il of the Amended Complaint with Prejudice. and due cause appearing
therefor, it s herchy:

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Counts | und {1 of the Amended Complaing are
hereby dismissed with prejudice. It is alsor

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that judgmen! is grunted in favor of ACORN on
Counterclaims | and H,

DONE and QRDERED in Chambers at Mgmi, Floridaghis mé_’day of <2005,

MES LAWRENCE KING
INITED STATES DISTRICT )

Conformed copies to:
Magisirate Judge O Sullivan
All Counse] uf Record

¥
yofl . 3 . &/

1R AT /AAAR WET 1R, 17T PV /DY NN 61231 Fang
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District Version v3.2.1 LIVE DB Page 1 of 2

U.S. District Court
District of New Mexico - Version 3.2.1 (Albuquerque)
CIVIL DOCKET FOR CASE #: 1:08-cv-01002-MV-ACT

Escobedo et al v. Rogers et al Date Filed: 10/27/2008
Assigned to: Chief Judge Martha Vazquez Jury Demand: None
Referred to: Magistrate Judge Alan C. Torgerson Nature of Suit: 441 Civil Rights: Voting
Cause: 42:1983 Civil Rights Act Jurisdiction: Federal Question
Plaintiff
Dora Escobedo represented by Nina Perales
MALDEF
110 Broadway
Suite 300

San Antonio, TX 78205
(210) 224-5476

Fax: (210) 224-5382

Email: nperales@maldef.org

LEAD ATTORNEY
Plaintiff
Eydia Olivarez represented by Nina Perales
(See above for address)
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
V.
Defendant

Patrick J. Rogers

Defendant
Al Romero

Pate Filed # | Docket Text

10/27/2008 L | COMPLAINT Verified Complaint for Injunctive Relief against Patrick J. Rogers,
Al Romero ( Filing Fee - Online Payment), filed by Dora Escobedo, Lydia
Olivarez.(Perales, Nina) (Entered: 10/27/2008)

10/27/2008 Filing Fee Received: $ 350 receipt number 10840000000000775775 re 1
Complaint filed by Lydia Olivarez, Dora Escobedo (Payment made via Pay.gov)
(Perales, Nina) (Entered: 10/27/2008)

10/27/2008 2 | First MOTION for Pro Hac Vice Motion for Admission Pro Hac Vice of Nina
Perales by Dora Escobedo, Lydia Olivarez. (Perales, Nina) (Entered:

https://ecf.nmd.uscourts.gov/egi-bin/DktRpt.pl?721 19049655401 §3-L_567 0-1 16/28/2008



District Version v3.2.1 LIVE DB

10/27/2008)

Page 2 0f2

10/27/2008

Had

First MOTION for Pro Hac Vice Motion for Admission Pro Hac Vice of Diego
M. Bernal by Dora Escobedo, Lydia Olivarez. (Perales, Nina) (Entered:

10/27/2008)

10/27/2008

Chief Judge Martha Vazquez and Magistrate Judge Alan C. Torgerson assigned.

(nm) (Entered: 10/27/2008)

10/27/2008

Summons Issued as to Patrick J. Rogers & Al Romero. (nm) (Entered:

10/27/2008)

PACER Service Center

Transaction Receipt

|

10/28/2008 10:31:13

PACER
Login:

Client

mel059 Code:

14591-1

Description:

1:08-cv-01002-MV-ACT Start
date: 10/1/2008 End date:
10/28/2008

Docket Search
Report Criteria:

Bitiable
Pages:

1 Cost: .08

https://ecf.nmd.ascourts.gov/egi-bin/DktRpt.pl72119049655401 83-L_567 0-1

10/28/2008



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW MEXICO

DORA ESCOBEDQO and LYDIA &
OLIVAREZ §
§
Plaintiffs, §
§
v. §
§
PATRICK J. ROGERS AND §
AL ROMERO, §
§
§
Defendants. §
VERIFIED COMPLAINT
NATURE OF THE ACTION

This action seeks to enjoin Defendant individuals from threatening and
intimidating minority race voters who seek to cast their ballots in the November 4, 2008
General Election. Defendants have thus far publicly questioned Plaintiffs’ eligibility to
vote, released Plaintiffs’ names and other personal information to the media, threatened
to turn over Plaintiffs’ personal information to law enforcement officials for investigation
into voter fraud, and appeared at Plaintiffs’ homes to further intimidate them from voting.
Without this Court’s intervention, Defendants will continue to threaten and intimidate
Plaintiff voters, thus hindering their exercise of the right to vote. Plaintiffs seek an
mjunction prohibiting Defendants from firther threatening and intimidating them and

prohibiting Defendants from challenging their eligibility to vote.



JURISDICTION AND VENUE
1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action and over the parties. Jurisdiction is
proper pursuant to 28 U.8.C. §§ 1331 and 1343, 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and common law,
Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because the acts

complained of occurred in Bernalillo County, New Mexico and Defendants reside in New

Mexico.
PARTIES
Plaintiffs

2. Plainiiff DORA ESCOBEDO is a citizen of the United States. She resides in
Albuquerque, New Mexico and is a registered and eligible voter of Bernalillo County,
NM. Plaintiff ESCOBEDO is Latina.
3. Plaintiff LYDIA OLIVAREZ is a citizen of the United States. She resides in
Albuguerque, New Mexico and is a registered and eligible voter of Bernélilio County,
NM. Plaintiff OLIVAREZ is Latina,
Defendants
4. Defendant PATRICK J. ROGERS resides in New Mexico and is subject to the
laws of New Mexico and the United States.
5. Defendant AL ROMERQ resides .in New Mexico and is subject to the laws of
New Mexico and the United States.

ALLEGATIONS OF FACT
6. Plaintiff DORA ESCOBEDO voted for the first time in the June 2008 Primary

Election in Bernalillo County, NM. Plaintiff ESCOBEDQO had previously registered to



vote on March 28, 2008, approximately seven months after becoming a naturalized
citizen. Plaintiff ESCOBEDQ is sixty-seven years old.

7. Plaintiff LYDIA OLIVAREZ voted in the June 2008 Primary Election in
Bernalillo County, NM. Plaintiff OLIVAREZ had previously registered to vote on
February 28, 2008, after moving to New Mexico from California. Plaintiff OLIVAREZ
is sixty-three years old.

8. On Thursday, October 16, 2008, Defendant ROGERS participated in a press
conference convened by the New Mexico Republican Party to announce that it believes at
least 28 people cast fraudulent votes in the June 2008 Democratic Primary Election for
State Representaﬁve in District 13.

9. At the press conference, Defendant ROGERS and other individuals distributed to
reporters a packet of documents containing information about 28 voters that it claimed
“suggests serious questions about the validity of those votes.”

10.  This press packet further stated “[t}he informatioﬁ immediately available indicates
significant indicia of fraud, identity theft issues or serious identity questions. The results
of the investigation (first 10 summarized below) of all 28 will be provided to the
Attorney General, District Attorney and the FBI with a request for a full and immediate
investigation.”

11, Defendant ROGERS was further quoted in an Associated Press report of October
16, 2008 saying that the information in the press packet would be turmed over to law
enforcement officials for investigation into voter fraud.

12, The press packet named 10 individuals as having questionable votes, including

Plaintiff ESCOBEDQ and Plaintiff OLIVAREZ. The press packet included copies of the



ten individuals’ original voter registration applications which showed their addresses,
phone numbers, dates of birth, and signatures. The press packet included additional
notations regarding “indicia of fraud” for each individual.

13, The press packet stated, for Plaintiff ESCOBEDQ, that a person with her name
had relied on & Spanish language court interpreter during a legal proceeding in 1995 and
that that such reliance was “a common occurrence for illegal aliens in the court system.”
The press packet further stated that “No SSN or date of birth is associated with the voter,
highly unusual based on a resident of at least 9 years.” Finally, the press packet included
notations revealing the results of a search of Plaintiff ESCOBEDO’s credit history.

14.  The press packet stated, for Plaintiff OLIVAREZ, that she had two social security
numbers, various “aliases” and no New Mexico driver’s license. The notations also
stated that a search regarding Plaintitf OLIVAREZ’s social security number indicated
“frand or'identity theft.”

15, On Wednesday, October 22, 2008 Defendant ROMERQ appeared at the home of
Plaintiff ESCOBEDO and asked her repeatedly to let him into her house. Defendant
ROMERQ represented himself as an investigator and stated that there was a problem
with Plaintiff ESCOBEDQ’s voter registration.

16. Défendant ROMERO demanded to see Plaintiff ESCOBEDOQ’s 1dentification
card, accused Plaintiff ESCOBEDO of being a non-U.S. citizen, threatened to call
immigration authorities to her house, and langhed at her when Plaintiff ESCOBEDOQO
explained that she possessed naturalization documents.

17. Defendant ROMERO remained outside. Plaintiff ESCOBEDO’S home for

approximately one hour claiming throughout that time that he was checking discrepancies



in voter registration. He further stated that he was working for a private attorney named
PATRICK J. ROGERS.
18.  Also on Wednesday, October 22, 2008 Defendant ROMERO appeared at the
home of Plaintiff OLIVAREZ.
19, Plaintiff OLIVAREZ was not home at the time. Another resident of the
household sent Defendant ROMERO away and contacted Plaintiff OLTVAREZ, regarding
the visit and its connection to claims of voter fraud in Bernalillo County.
20.  Plaintiffs ESCOBEDO and OLIVAREZ feel threatened and intimidated by the
actions of Defendants and believe that they are being targeted for accusations of voter
fraud because of their race and national origin as well as théir voting in the 2008 Primary
and General Elections. Plaintiff | ESCOBEDO has mailed her ballot to vote in the
November 2008 General Election and Plaintiff OLIVAREZ hopes to cast her ballot by
mail in the November 2008 General Election. Plaintiffs ESCOBEDO and OLIVAREZ
are afraid that Defendants will challenge their ability to vote in the November 2008
General Election and seek to invalidated their ballots before they are counted.
21.  Defendants’ actions against Plaintiffs were intentional, and performed with
callous, deliberate and reckless disregard for Plaintiffs’ rights under both the laws and
Constitution of the United States.

COUNTI

THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965, 42 U.S.C. § 1971(b)
(AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

22, Plaintiffs incorporate by reference all preceding allegations as if fully set forth

herein,



23, Defendants violated 42 U.8.C. § 1971(b) by intimidating, threatening, coercing,
and/or attempting to intimidate, threaten, or coerce Plaintiffs for the purpose of
interfering with the right of Plaintiffs to vote for candidates for federal office in the
November 2008 General Election.

COUNTIX

THE VOTING RIGHTS ACT OF 1965, 42 US.C. § 19731 {b)
{AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

24, Plaintiffs incorporate by reference all preceding allegations as if fully set forth
herein.
25.  Defendants vioiéted 42 US.C. § 1973i (b) by intimidating, threatening, or
coercing, and/or attempting to intimidate, threaten, or coerce Plaintiffs for voting or
attemipting to vote,

COUNT I

CONSPIRACY TO INTERFERE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS
(AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

26.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference all preceding allegations as if fully set forth
herein.

27.  Defendants violated 42 U.S.C. 1985 (3) by canspiring to prevent by force,
intimidation, or threat, Plaintiffs from voting for candidates for federal office in the
November 2008 General Election,

28.  Defendants’ actions against Plaintiffs were taken with racially discriminatory
intent and effect. |

29.  Defendants acted intentionally and/or with reckless, deliberate and callous

indifference to Plaintiffs’ rights.



30.  Defendants’ acts and omissions were the direct and proximate cause of harm to

Plaintif¥s,

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray this Court provide the following relief
A Assumer jurisdiction over this matter;
B. Declare that Defendants violated Plaintiffs' rights secured by the Voting Rights
Act as alleged herein;
| C. Declare that Defendants’ violated Plaintiffs’ rights secured by 42 U.S.C. 1985 (3)
as alleged herein;
D. Enjoin Defendants, their officers, agents, employees and all persons in active
concert with them, from undertaking activities which are designed to intimidate, threaten
Or coerce voters concemning their right to vote in an election or which are designed to in
any way interfere with or discourage lawful exercise of the franchise:
E. Enjoin Defendants, their officers, agents, employees and all persons in active
concert with them, from undertaking activities to challenge the validity or legitimacy of
Plaintiffs’ votes cast in the November 4, 2008 General Election or the June 2008 Primary
Election;
F. Award Plaintiffs reasonable costs and attomeys fees incurred in bringing this
action;
G. Award such other and further relief as the Court may deem appropriate, including

injunctive and declaratory relief as may be required in the interests of justice.



VERIFICATION

1, Lydia Olivarez, a citizen of the United States and resident of the State of New
Mexico, am a plaintiff in this action. I have read the foregoing Verified Complaint and
declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the
foregoing facts are carrect and true to the best of my knowledge and belief and that those

factual matters that are stated upon information and belief are believed by me to be true.

% &)ﬁwm;w
o

Lydia Olivarez

DATED: October 27, 2008

Respectfully submitted,

Nina Perales (seeking admission Pro Hac Vice)
Diego Bernal (seeking admission Pro Hac Vice)
Marisol L. Perez (seeking admission Pro Hac Vice)
MEXICAN AMERICAN LEGAL DIEFENSE AND
EDUCATIONAL

FUND, INC.

110 Broadway, Suite 300

San Antonio, Texas 78205

(210) 224-5476

Facsimile (210} 224-5382

W

I%eph Sapien v
PHillip Sapien

SAPIEN LAW, L.L.C.

P.O. Box 965

Albuquerque, NM 87103-0965
(505) 842-5979

(505) 842-6002 Fax

Attorneys for Plaintiffs



CIVIL COVER SHEET

The I8 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein nefther retplace noc supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other
by focai rules of court. This farm, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 15974, is required for the use of ¢

WJS 44 (Rev. 12/07)

Eapcrs asteguired by law, exceptas provided
e Clerk of Court for the purpase of initiating

B
the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE OF THE FORM,}

I {a) PLAINTIFFS
DORA ESCOBEDO, LYDIA OLIVAREZ
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